MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF JANUARY 1, 2006

SWEARING-IN CEREMONIES, 11:00 A.M. COUNCIL CHAMBER, JANUARY 1, 2006

THE FOLLOWING ARE THE TITLES AND NAMES OF ELECTED OFFICIALS SWORN INTO OFFICE AT 11:00 A.M. ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 1, 2006 IN THE CANTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, CANTON, OHIO. INCLUDED IS THE INFORMATION AS TO WHO HELD THE BIBLE & BY WHOM THE OFFICIAL WAS SWORN IN. COPIES OF NOTARIZED OATHS OF OFFICE ARE ON FILE IN THE COUNCIL OFFICE WITH THE AGENDA ITEMS FILE DATED JANUARY 1, 2006.

TITLE & NAME: Ray Denczak	HOLDING THE BIBLE: Great Grandson Jack Ryan Shanor Attendees: Daughter Pamela & Husband Larry; Canton Municipal Court Son Raymond & Wife Judy; granddaughter Lauren & escort Eric; Granddaughter Megan & Husband Ryan; Great Grandson Grady Raymond Shanor	SWORN-IN BY: Judge Mary Falvey
MEMBERS OF COUNCIL Donald E. Casar, Cncl-At-Lg	Wife, Rite Attendees: S on Donald; Daughter & Son-In-Law Denise & Michael; Grandchildren Kellie, Jack, Luke, Luke & Lisa	Thomas M. Bernabei Attorney At Law
Mary M. Cirelli, Cncl-At-Lg	Son, Donald J. Cirelli	Joseph Martuccio Canton Law Director
Bill Smuckler, Cncl-At-Lg	Wife, Randi Attendees: Daughter Megan, Hilary & Meredith	Tom Harmon Clerk of Courts
Greg Hawk, Ward 1	Daughter Lindsey	Kim Perez County Auditor
Thomas E. West, Ward 2	Wife Lisa; Daughter, Telia Love; Son, Thomas Edward II	Corey Minor-Smith Attorney At Law
James E. Griffin, Ward 3	Wife, Sandra Attendees: Family & Friends	Richard G. Bing Attorney At Law
Kelly Zachary, Ward 4	Husband Gerald Attendees: Family & Friends	Jonathan Morris Attorney At Law
Terry Prater, Ward 5	Wife Dawn & Daughter Cassie Attendees: Son & Mother, Craig & Bea Prater	Judge Mary Falvey Canton Muni Court
David R. Dougherty, Ward 6	Daughters, Jenny & Sara Sons Michael & Brian Attendees: Wife Donna; Father Jim & Stepmother Peg	Judge John Poulos Canton Muni Court
Richard D. Hart, Ward 7	Wife, Teresa	Judge Stephen F. Belden, Canton Municipal Court

Karl "Butch" Kraus, Ward 8 Friend, Jennifer Frank Forchione

Attendees: Daughter Lisa; Son Jason; City Prosecutor/

Family & Friends Ass't. Law Director

Joe Carbenia, Ward 9 Wife Clara: Thomas M. Bernabei

Attendees: Sons Guy, Joe & Wife Jill; Attorney At Law

Daughter Michele; Granddaughter Maria; Grandsons Joey, Mario & Escort Dawnyel

AUDITOR

Daughter Ashley & Son Trey Richard A. Mallonn II Frank Forchione/

> Canton City Prosecutor/ Ass't. Law Director

TREASURER

Robert C. Shirack* *Sworn in previously

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING JANUARY 1, 2006

The special meeting of canton City Council was held on Monday, January 1, 2006 at 11:30 A.M. in the Canton City Council Chamber following the swearing-in ceremonies held at 11:00 A.M. The meeting was called to order by President of Council Ray Denczak.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: With a quorum being present the Chair calls this meeting of Canton City Council to order. Roll Call Please.

The roll call was then taken (as follows) by pro tem Clerk of Council Debbie Vanckunas. The Pledge of Allegiance was sung by Ms. Raylena Bevington. The invocation was given by Councilmember-at-Large Donald E. Casar, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by President of Council Denczak.

ROLL CALL: ALL 12 COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT (DONALD E. CASAR, JOE CARBENIA, MARY CIRELLI, BILL SMUCKLER, GREG HAWK, THOMAS E .WEST, JAMES E. GRIFFIN, KELLY ZACHARY, TERRY PRATER, DAVID R. DOUGHERTY, RICHARD D. HART, & BUTCH KRAUS)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: The Chair is appointing Debbie Vanckunas Clerk Pro Tem, Beverly Bevington and Cindy Timberlake as Council Staff Pro Tem during this portion of the meeting until they are officially elected. I'm going to start this term off differently for this year. I've asked the daughter of Bev Bevington, Raylena Mae Bevington, to sing a'capella our National Anthem. Come up here Raylena, by the flag?

MS. BEVINGTON: It doesn't matter, I don't care.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Right there?

MS. BEVINGTON: Here?

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Yeah.

THE NATIONAL ANTHEM WAS SUNG BY RAYLENA BEVINGTON. (APPLAUSE)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Thank you very much Raylena. Please stand and we'll have the invocation given by Councilmember At Large Donald E. Casar. Please remain standing for the Pledge of Allegiance.

INVOCATION GIVEN BY COUNCILMEMBER AT LARGE DONALD CASAR.

INFORMAL RESOLUTIONS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Thank you Member Casar. It will not be necessary to excuse Members.

NOTE: PRESIDENT DENCZAK CALLED UPON CLERK OF COUNCIL VANCKUNAS TO READ THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTIONS 1-4 BY AGENDA TITLE AS SHOWN BELOW. THE RESOLUTIONS ARE ON FILE IN THEIR ENTIRETY IN THE COUNCIL OFFICE WITH THE AGENDA ITEMS FILE DATED JANUARY 1, 2006.

1. COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE COUNCIL: APPROVING & ADOPTING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR CANTON CITY COUNCIL EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2006 - ADOPTED BY COUNCIL

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President, I move we adopt Resolution #1; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded that you adopt Resolution #1. Are there any remarks under this Resolution?

MEMBER ZACHARY: Mr. President. It says that we all received a letter from yourself today and we haven't really had a chance to examine or go over it but it does deal with the proposed rule changes. Is it possible for us to discuss that in an executive session or whatever the case may be because this was kinda just given, given to us today and I would really like a little more time to look at the proposed changes and go, and go from there. Some things were questioned and I think we need to discuss that.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Well, um, this Resolution came from the Committee-of-the-Whole Council. I'm not so sure it did come from the Committee Of The Whole Council; but yes, the Chair's going to grant a five (5) minute recess so you people can study this and discuss it either here or in the Caucus Room. Not in Executive Session, no, recess.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President....

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: You have a 5 minute recess. You can either hold it here or in the Caucus Room.

(Council recessed at 11:48 am to 12:04 pm for an in-house recess to discuss Resolution #1. The President of Council reconvened the meeting at 12:04 pm)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: The question before you now is Resolution #1. Are there any remarks under this Resolution?.... If not, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 11 YEAS, 1 NAY (ZACHARY VOTED NO)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Resolution #1 has been adopted. After the vote is taken the Chair would like to get

a legal opinion here. Law Director, Council has voted on this. I ask Council to go to Rule #7B.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President, point of information please.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: State your point of information.

MEMBER CASAR: This legislation has already been passed. I don't think it's the time to ask a legal opinion. Law Director, would you like to expound on that please.

LAW DIRECTOR: Mr. President, Mr. Majority Leader. When an act is passed by a legislative body, be it the Congress of the United States, the General Assembly of Ohio or the Council of the City of Canton, it is presumed to be constitutional and valid. If the question is raised, it's up to the Courts to determine whether or not that is the case. I can take a look and render an advisory opinion for Mr. President if he so chooses, but this now stands until such time as I and/or the Courts determine that it is illegal and I would bring that to your attention immediately if that were the case.

MEMBER CASAR: Thank you, Law Director.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Law Director, this is not an Ordinance. This is not a law. This is not a statute. This is a Council Rule of Procedure and the Chair has got to know the legality of this. The new ones, that just was passed, under 7B, under previous Council, the Clerk reported to the President of Council and the Majority Leader in his absence. Under, under your Rules, the President of Council has been omitted and the Clerk of Council only reports to the Majority Leader and in his absence to the Assistant Majority Leader. Now, I have before me, the official document describing what the responsibilities of the Clerk of Council is.......

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President again, point of order please.....

PRESIDENT DENCZAK:and in that it states that the Clerk of Council reports directly to the President of Council. There is a conflict here. What applies, this job description or this rule of Council?

LAW DIRECTOR: Mr. President, you asked a good question. That question was raised in the discussion with Council. Council, under the, to, again, state this briefly, the City of Canton is a statutory city meaning that we operate under the Revised Code of the State of Ohio and the Constitution of Ohio. Whatever is in Title 7 essentially describes what we can and cannot do. Employees of the Council of the City of Canton, Council employees can be hired, disciplined or fired by a majority of Council. In this case, since there are 12 members of Council, it takes 7 people, 7 votes to either hire, fire or discipline an employee. If this Council chooses to change the way that the employees report to it, it may do so, in my opinion. The job description currently is now out of date because this rule has just been passed by a new session of Council on the first day of the new year. The job description then will have to reflect whatever this Council does. It is a reflection of what the Appointing Authority would like it to be. For example, in my office, I have a number of fiduciary employees, meaning employees like yours, employees who are hired at the will of Council and they serve at the will of the Appointing Authority. Assuming that the rules are not unconstitutional or illegal, the Appointing Authority can fashion the job description with the help of Human Resources. So, again, presuming that this is a validly passed ordinance or resolution and a validly passed series of changes, the Human Resources Department then, can reflect those changes from the job description. This would supercede the job description in my opinion. Thanks for the chance to answer that.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Now I can see why the government is so messed up. Now, for my information and I have to know this, the President of Council used to appoint the Clerk Pro Tem in the absence of the Clerk. Now you've changed the rules that I can only appoint a temporary Clerk for the duration of the meeting that the Clerk is not there. Now, what happens when the Clerk of Council goes on vacation for 1 or 2 weeks? Who is responsible for the Council Office? Can you answer that Mr. Martuccio?

LAW DIRECTOR: Mr. President. The concept you're referring to is often called pay for rank or temporary appointment. It was something that originated predominately in the unions here in the City of Canton and we have imported from time to time into management, non-union jobs. If, if the Appointing Authority believes that an employee is performing work of a high rank, if you will, or step up in someone's absence, the Appointing Authority may have the ability to do that, provided that its ordinances and resolutions make for that accommodation; otherwise you may have 2 people holding the same step. In this case, to answer your question directly, it's, Council is the Appointing Authority and I believe it would be up to Council to determine whether or not a person is actually performing and may be placed in the next rank or step up provided it is fiscally allowable to do so.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: I have sent each of you a letter dated December 29th. Now that you've passed this rule I will abide by this rule; I have to as I took the oath of office to do, but what is going on here members of Council, you're leading into 1-man rule in Council. That's very dangerous. I don't care, I'm not going to be here too much longer, but it's not going to be fair to the next Council President, whoever he or she will be. I'm so disgusted and dissatisfied that Council is allowing 1 man to run this show.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President. For the members of the new Council and also the audience, I want to state emphatically, that the rules that we changed today are almost going back to where they were for years and last year, myself as Majority Leader, the one person that wants to run this Council, according to your words, we gave you extra authority to do things in Council office that you never had before but, however, Mr. President, in my opinion and it was the opinion of the Rules Committee and the majority of this Council, that you did not do an adequate job. That is why it's going back to the way it is. Thank you.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Why don't you recall me from office, huh? You don't have the guts to.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President.... I'll tell you... Mr. President.....

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: You want to be the President of Council, Member Casar. You love the power that you have.

MEMBER CASAR: Oh....Mr. Pre......

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: You stated that several times.

MEMBER CASAR: Oh, I did?

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: You're a power-hungry individual.....

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President....

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: .. and this City is gonna suffer and the Administration is gonna suffer.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President. I think not, Mr. President. I think this, I think this Council is going in the right direction.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Members of Council, who appoints the Committees and the Chairmen thereof? Huh? What does your rules say? The Majority Leader and the Assistant Majority Leader, however, the Majority Leader has the final say so. Isn't that a 1-man rule?

MEMBER CASAR: And, and, Mr. President, it's always been that way also.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: 'Ya know ladies and gentlemen, I've been Council President for 33 years. Each year---that's not smart, Casar---each year the Democrat-controlled Council keeps pecking away at my authority. I don't care, I get paid the same amount of money but I have to sit back and laugh at the power-hungry individual's act, not for the betterment of the community, but for their benefit. You've passed this rule, we'll go by your rules but I'm very disgusted. Second Committee-of-the-Whole, you guys all met on this.

2. COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE COUNCIL: ELECTIONS OF COUNCIL VICE-PRESIDENT AND FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT: Vice President <u>Donald E. Casar</u> First Vice-President: <u>Joseph Carbenia</u> - ADOPTED BY COUNCIL

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President, I move we adopt Resolution #2; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded that you adopt Resolution #2. It's for the election of the Vice President and First Vice President. For Vice President, Donald E. Casar. First Vice President, Joe Carbenia. Are there any remarks under this Resolution?... If not, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 11 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSTENTION (ZACHARY ABSTAINED)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Resolution #2 is adopted.

3. COMMITTEE -OF-THE-WHOLE: ELECTIONS OF CLERK OF COUNCIL AND THE OFFICE STAFF. - Clerk of Council: <u>Debra Vanckunas</u>. Administrative Assistant V: <u>Beverly Bevington</u>. Administration Assistant V: <u>Cindy Timberlake</u>. - ADOPTED BY COUNCIL

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President. I move we adopt Resolution #3; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded that you adopt Resolution #3. Are there any remarks under this Resolution?... Very well, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 11 YEAS, 0 NAY, 1 ABSTENTION (CIRELLI ABSTAINED)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Resolution #3 is adopted.

4. COMMITTEE -OF-THE-WHOLE: AUTHORITY TO ADVERTISE ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES. - Awarded to: <u>The Repository/Beacon Journal as alternate</u> - ADOPTED BY COUNCIL

MEMBER CASAR: I move we adopt Resolution #4.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded that you adopt Resolution #4 as a Committee-As-A-Whole. It's awarding *The Repository* and the *Akron Beacon Journal* as an alternate, the authority to advertise ordinances and resolutions and notices. Are there any remarks under this Resolution?... If not, roll call vote.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Resolution #4 is adopted and *The Repository* will advertise all our ordinances and resolutions and notices.

OPENING REMARKS:

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Opening remarks. Mayor Creighton...

MAYOR CREIGHTON: Mr. President. Thank you. Good afternoon everyone and welcome to a great 2006. First of all I would like to congratulate Mary and Bill and Butch as new electees to Canton City Council and to all the rest of you that have been here for the last 2 years. My sincere congratulations to all of you. I also want to commend their families because I know how tough it is when people run for office and I know the support of a family is most important; and, most importantly, I would like to thank you for your public service to the City of Canton. You know, for the last 2 years, we've seen positive changes and quite frankly, we are on the right track. We are on the right track because of the cooperation that we have received from all the officials in the City of Canton, the Treasurer and the Auditor, the Law Director, and even, even our clerks and our Clerk and our Judges. We appreciate that. I would attribute also our success to the fact that we have had open communication. We have a mutual respect for one another and we have also had very healthy debates. I don't see why things should change, quite frankly. It's not about a personal agenda, in my eyes, and it's not about who gets credit. It's about what the mission of this City really is and every one of us should be asking ourself, what is best for the City of Canton and how we can continue to make this an even greater city in which to live, work and play. I want you to please remember a few things. The door of the Administration is always open as it has been for the last 2 years. We welcome your input, we welcome your suggestions and ideas, your constructive suggestions that might be needed. Sometimes we don't always see eye to eye on things but most importantly, I think that we all need to work to better our City and I'm confident that that's why you are all here. You are representing your own wards but you represent, really, the city as a whole. So, I, I ask for your continued cooperation. In closing, I would just like to share with you. There was an Athenian oath that I used 2 years ago when I became the Mayor, and if I might, Mr. President, I would just like to share the last paragraph. We will transmit our City of Canton, not only, not less, but greater and more beautiful than it was transmitted to us, so help us God. And, if we all remember that, I think that we will all continue to put this city in the right direction on a positive track and we will continue to grow with everyone cooperating. Thank you.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Majority Casar....

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President. In the last 2 years, City Council has worked cooperatively with the City's Administration on many fronts. Much attention has been given to economic growth. We are all extremely pleased with Canton's significant improvement in the economy over the last 2 years, especially in income tax receipts. Much higher than the level of 2004. We intend to continue our many economic development endeavors. We'll work hard to see that the City continues to grow and prosper as it has in '05. A more disturbing

concern however is crime. Canton was recently listed as the 30th most dangerous city in the United States. Although we may not agree with this statistic, and for me and most members of Council and the Administration, Canton is a safe place to work, live and raise our families. In many neighborhoods, the statistic is a reality. We members in City Council continuously hear week after week of crimes and disturbances in our City and in the streets. The bottom line of these complaints is universal....the lack of police presence on the streets. In this area, we can do better and we shall do better. As Majority Leader of the current 2006-2007 term, I wish to state my declaration to the idea of the making Canton streets safer for all citizens by increasing police presence. As part of the 2006 budget, which we will be adopting today, Canton Council is funding 4 policemen that have been retired and are funding 6 new policemen. That is a total of 10 officers that we will have on the streets and according to the Civil Service information, the leading candidates on the list of the Civil Service certificate, they've already been trained and certified and it is hopeful that the Administration will be able to place these officers on the street within 60 days. I wish everyone, in particular the citizens of our good City, a healthy and prosperous and safe new year.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Minority Leader Hart.

MEMBER HART: Today in 2006, we have the opportunity before us, and many times opportunity is only gonna pass our way one time and it's going to be up to each and every one of us to reach out and seize that opportunity. We have every opportunity to make things more positive for Canton, making it a great place for people to come and live and raise a family. We have every opportunity to make Canton a great place to come and do business. Together, strengthening our neighborhoods, providing economic opportunity for our residents, we'll see that the community receives the fuel that it needs to continue the progressive growth and it'll be up to each and every one of us to work together as a City Council and as an Administration to make Canton a better place and I look forward to these next 2 years. Thank you.

COMMUNICATIONS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Under communications, the Finance Committee and the Majority Leader sent a letter to the Mayor regarding the 2006 budget appropriations ordinance. This is received and filed. Communication #2 is from the President of Council calling for a special Council meeting. Your new rules bar me from ever calling another special Council meeting.

NOTE: ALL COMMUNICATIONS WHICH FOLLOW, LISTED BY AGENDA TITLE, ARE ON FILE IN THEIR ENTIRETY IN THE COUNCIL OFFICE WITH THE AGENDA ITEMS FILE DATED JANUARY 1, 2006.

- 1. FINANCE COMMITTEE & MAJORITY LEADER CASAR, CITY OF CANTON: LETTER TO MAYOR, ET AL RE: 2006 BUDGET /APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE RECEIVED & FILED
- 2. PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL RAY DENCZAK, CITY OF CANTON: CALLING A SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING JANUARY 1, 2006 AT 11:30 AM IN COUNCIL CHAMBER. RECEIVED & FILED

ORDINANCES & FORMAL RESOLUTIONS FOR FIRST READING

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Under Ordinances, first reading and referral to committee, let the journal show that all ordinances are being given their reading as required by State law. It's required to suspend Rule 22A, Member Casar.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President, I move we suspend Rule 22A and add Ordinance #1 on the agenda today; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded to suspend Rule 22A to add ordinance #1 to the agenda. Are there any remarks?... If not, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Ordinance #20, Ordinance #1 is a legal part of your agenda. Would you read the ordinance please.

NOTE: PRESIDENT DENCZAK CALLED UPON CLERK VANCKUNAS TO READ THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE #1 FOR THE FIRST TIME BY TITLE & ANNOUNCED THE COMMITTEE REFERRAL, AS FOLLOWS.

#1 (1st RDG) <u>ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 1/2006</u> AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATING AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES FOR THE CITY OF CANTON, OHIO FR THE FISCAL YEAR 2006; AND DECLARING THE SAME TO BE AN EMERGENCY Referred to the Finance Committee.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: This is referred to the Finance Committee. The Chair is gonna call a recess now, in house, for you to discuss Ordinance #1. You're in recess.

(Council recessed at 12:24 pm for an in-house recess to discuss Ordinance #1. The President of Council reconvened the meeting at 12:28 pm)

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Council is reconvening from the recess. Member Casar....?

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President. I move we suspend Rule 22A and return Ordinance #1 back on to today's agenda; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded to suspend 22A to add this ordinance back to the agenda. Are there any remarks?... Roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Ordnance #1 is back on the agenda legally. Member Casar...?

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President. I move we suspend the statutory rules on Ordinance #1; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: There's a move to dispense with the 3 readings of Ordinance #1. Are there any remarks?... If not, roll call vote.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: You've heard the 3 readings, Member Casar.

MEMBER CASAR: Mr. President, I move we adopt Ordinance #1; seconded.

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Moved and seconded that you adopt Ordinance #1. Are there any remarks under this Ordinance?... Very well, roll call vote please.

NO REMARKS ROLL CALL: 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: Ordinance #1 is adopted. #1 ADOPTED AS ORDINANCE NO. 1/2006

ADJOURNMENT

PRESIDENT DENCZAK: This being a special call for a meeting, no other business can be transacted or discussed, therefore, this meeting is adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT TIME: 12:30 P.M.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

DEBRA VANCKUNAS RAY DENCZAK
CLERK OF COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL